
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84203959772 

1-877-853-5247
AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3-minute limit)

5. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS

a. NOVEMBER 2021

b. DECEMBER 2021

7. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS

8. CONTINUED BUSINESS

a. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL UPDATE

9. NEW BUSINESS

10. CORRESPONDENCE

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY JANUARY 27, 2022 

9:00 AM 

 Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 

    1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84203959772


SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

JANUARY 
 2022 

Page 1 of 3 
 

AASHTO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS 

ACT  ACTUAL 

ACCTS  ACCOUNTS 

ADA  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

ADS  ADVERTISEMENTS 

AP  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

APTA  AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORATION ASSOCIATION 

AR  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

ASC  ASTORIA SENIOR CENTER 

ATU  AMALGAMATED TRANSIT UNION 

BG  BACKGROUND 

BLDGING BUILDING 

BOC  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BS  BALANCE SHEET 

BUS REG FEE BUS REGISTRATION FEE 

CARES ACT CORONAVIRUS, AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT 

CCC  CLATSOP COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CCCHD  CLATSOP CARE CENTER HEALTH DISTRICT 

CCO  COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CK  CHECK 

COMP  COMPUTER 

CONF  CONFERENCE 

CPCCO  COLUMBIA PACIFIC COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CRRSAA  CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE AND RELIEF SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

CRS  CLATSOP REHABILITATION SERVICES 

CSR  CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

CTAA  COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 

CTE  CENTER FOR TRANSPORTATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

DAV  DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS 

DHS  DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIST  DISTRICT 

DLSM  DRIVE LESS SAVE MORE 

DMAP  DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

DOJ  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

DOT  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EQUIP  EQUIPMENT 

FHWA  FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

FTA  FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

GF  GENERAL FUND 

HR  HUMAN RESOURCES 

IGA  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

INFO  INFORMATION 

INT  INTEREST 

    2



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

JANUARY 
 2022 

Page 2 of 3 

IS INCOME STATEMENT 

INS INTEGRATED NETWORK SYSTEM 

IT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

KTH KEY TRANSIT HUBS 

LCC LOWER COLUMBIA CONNECTOR 

LGIP LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 

LGPI LOCAL GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL INSTITUTE 

LRCTP LONG RANGE COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

MAINT MAINTENANCE 

MASA MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSOCIATION 

MBRC MILES BETWEEN ROAD CALLS 

MISC MISCELLANEOUS 

MM MOBILITY MANAGEMENT 

MOS MONTH 

MOU MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

NADTC NATIONAL AGING AND DISABILITY TRANSPORTATION CENTER 

NEMT NON-EMERGENT MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION 

NHMP NATURAL HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN 

NRTAP NATIONAL RURAL TRANSIT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

NTI NATIONAL TRANSIT INSTITUTE 

NWACT  NORTHWEST AREA COMMISSION ON TRANSPORTATION 

NWOTA  NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE 

OAR OREGON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

ODOT OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

OHA OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

OHP OREGON HEALTH PLAN 

OrCPP OREGON COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT PROGRAM 

ORS OREGON REVISED STATUTES 

OPTC OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

OPTIS OREGON PUBLIC TRANSIT INFORMATION SYSTEM 

OPTP OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

OR OREGON 

OTA OREGON TRANSIT ASSOCIATION 

OTC OREGON TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

OTP OREGON TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

P&L PROFIT AND LOSS 

PARA PARA-TRANSIT 

PCA PERSONAL CARE ATTENDANT 

PM PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 

PTAC PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PTD PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION 

PTSP PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER 

QE QUALIFIED ENTITY 

    3



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

JANUARY 
 2022 

Page 3 of 3 
 

QTR  QUARTER 

RAC  RULES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

RC  RIDECARE 

REHAB  REHABILITATION 

RFP  REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

RFQ  REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

RIBTC  RURAL AND INTERCITY BUS TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

SDAO   SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON 

SDIS  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INSURANCE SERVICES 

SETD  SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SETD GF SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SETD GEN SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SIP  SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

SSP/0401 ACCOUNT FROM OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

STF  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

STIF  STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND 

STIP  STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

STN  STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

STP  SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

SWIP  SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

TAC  TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

TAC  TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (STF/5310/STIF) 

TCTD  TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

TECH  TECHNOLOGY 

TGM  TRANSPORTATION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT 

TO  TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS 

TPJCC  TONGUE POINT JOB CORPS CENTER 

TRB  TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH BOARD 

TSP  TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS PLAN 

VETP  VETERANS ENHANCED TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

YTD  YEAR TO DATE 

ZEB  ZERO EMISSION BUS 

ZEP  ZERO EMISSION PROPULSION 

ZEBRA  ZERO EMISSION BUS RESOURCE ALLIANCE 

 

    4



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 (2)(d) To conduct  

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Vice Chair Tracy MacDonald called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM.  

 

2. ROLL CALL: Present: Vice Chair Tracy MacDonald, Secretary/Treasurer Diana Nino, Commissioner Pamela 

Alegria, Commissioner Charles Withers, Commissioner Rebecca Read, Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt attended 

by phone due to technical difficulties and Commissioner Guillermo Romero was excused. 

 

Staff: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Chief Operating Officer Paul Lewicki, Deputy Operations Officer Jennifer 

Geisler, Financial Officer Kelly Smith, Executive Assistant Mary Parker, Transportation Options Specialist Kathy 

Kleczek, Human Resources Manager Sue Farmer, Mobility Manager Jason Jones  

 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA- Executive Director Hazen requested adding legal counsel change under New 

Business.  

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes)- Arla Miller made comment that on behalf of herself and the ODOT Public 

Transportation Division to wish the Board, staff, drivers, and any riders listening, safe and Happy Holidays and a 

Happy New Year.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 2021, BOARD MEETING MINUTES-  

Commissioner Alegria moved to approve the October 2021 Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Reed seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Read asked if Northwest Works was a part of Work Source Oregon. Executive 

Director Hazen said they are part of the Work Force Investment Board, and he would be explaining that 

in his presentation later in the meeting.   

Roll Call Vote: 

 

 

 

 

6-Aye  

0-Nay  

1-Excused 

Motion passed. 

 

 

6. FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS AND INFORMATION REPORTS OCTOBER 2021- Financial Officer Kelly Smith 

asked if there were any questions. There were several questions that were due to the accounts conversion, the 

auditor recommendations and general account clarification. There were no corrections or changes made to the 

Financial Report. 

Commissioner Read moved to accept the October 2021 financial reports as presented  

Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt seconded the motion.  

Discussion- None 

Roll Call Vote:  

 

 

 

Name Boothe-Schmidt  MacDonald Nino Alegria Withers Read Romero  

Aye x x x x x x   

Nay       excused 0 

Name Boothe-Schmidt  MacDonald Nino Alegria Withers Read Romero  

Aye x x x x x x  6 

Nay       excused 0 

 
Sunset Empire Transportation District 

Board of Commissioners  

December 9, 2021 

 Draft Zoom Board Meeting Minutes  

 

 

 
 

    5



 

2 

 

 

6-Aye  

0-Nay 

1-Excused  

Motion passed. 

 

8. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

a. Commissioner MacDonald- No Report  

b. Commissioner Alegria- Wished everyone a Happy Holiday. 

c. Commissioner Withers- Reported that he wanted to thank our district for participating in the Rosa Parks 

commemoration day. Commissioner Withers said he grew up in the rural south with the Jim Crow laws 

and the procedure was to go to the front of the bus pay your fare, get off and then enter through the back 

doors. He said it’s not as if this is hypothetical or this sort of thing did not exist. I lived that until 1963 or 

1964. Commissioner Withers said Rosa Parks was a brave woman, but she was one of many Rosa Parks 

who did that brave move to get that done. Commissioner Withers said he wanted to thank Jeff and staff 

for participating in what is a nationwide event and thank you from someone who lived the experience.  

d. Commissioner Nino- Reported that she had been recommended to participate in the ODOT video by the 

outreach manager of the North Coast Land Conservancy. The video interview was done at the Astoria 

Transit Center conference room, and she said it was nice to be there again. Commissioner Nino also said 

there was a lot of material filmed that will be used to help get the public engaged and it was a pleasure 

and honor to speak on behalf of our and other rural communities considering that she has not been a 

commissioner for that long. Commissioner Nino said they really liked the perspective that she was a 

writer when she first came to Oregon. Commissioner Nino thanked everyone for their congratulations. 

She also thanked everyone including staff for what they do and wished everyone Happy Holidays. 

e. Commissioner Reed-Reported that she is excited at all the things we are working on right now with the 

Transportation Plan and the anticipated Federal Funding which will boost the efforts of what we are 

already doing here. Commissioner Reed gave a big thank you to all that make the wheels turn and she is 

very proud to be part of this organization and looking forward to a new year of working together. 

Commissioner Read wished everyone Happy Holidays! 

f. Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt- Reported that she had watched the video from ODOT that Commissioner 

Nino was in, and it was great and wished everyone Happy Holidays.  

 

9. CONTINUED BUSINESS- None 

 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

a. SPECIAL DISTICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON (SDAO) CONFERENCE- Executive Director 

Hazen reported that the SDAO Conference is being held live in Eugene February 10th thru the 13th. Hazen 

said this is a great opportunity and I am thrilled that the entire Board is going to attend. Hazen explained 

that we need to individually sign up for the workshops or trainings we plan on attending. Hazen asked 

that each Board member tell Executive Assistant Mary Parker their choices. Mary will register the Board 

and other staff attending will register themselves. Commissioner Read suggested that we try to make sure 

that we have at least one person covering each of the topics. Commissioner Read said she has her 

schedule picked out but would be willing to jump onto another workshop if needed. Executive Director 

Hazen reminded everyone that just because your are signed up for a workshop, it does not mean you are 

locked in except for the trainings on the first day which we individually pay for. If you are attending a 

workshop and it is not what you expected you can move to a different one.  

SDAO DELEGATE- Executive Director Hazen explained that the Board needs to elect someone who will 

represent SETD as a voting delegate at both the At Large Caucus meeting and the SDAO Annual 

Business Meeting. Hazen said that Board members can attend the Caucus and he encouraged them to do 

so. Commissioner Withers nominated Commissioner Diana Nino to be SETD’s voting delegate. 

Commissioner Nino accepted the nomination.  

Executive Director Hazen said that we will be taking a bus down to Eugene and back for the conference. 

He asked if anyone is planning to take their own transportation to let him know. 

    6



 

3 

 

Executive Director Hazen encouraged everyone to attend the banquet the final night because he has seen 

the entertainment before and they are good.  

 

b. RETURNING CITIZEN PROGRAM-Executive Director Hazen presented a power point on the 

Returning Citizen Program. Hazen explained that the catalyst for this program started back in early 

August when Julia Castillo the Executive Director of Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Agency (HIRTA) 

wrote a blog post that the Community Transit Association of America (CTAA) sent out on August 10th.  

Hazen said he would have never thought of the idea she had in that blog. He emailed Julia that evening 

and started developing a relationship with her and let her know how excited he was and how much she 

had inspired him to set something up in Oregon. Hazen said his vision is a statewide program to get 

returning citizens that have been incarcerated and are coming up on their release date to be trained and 

obtain their CDL to be a transit operator prior to their release. The goal being for them to have a potential 

future in front of them when they step out of prison and return to the communities that they were from. 

Hazen said in the beginning the first thing he did was reach out to the Division Administrator for Public 

Transportation at ODOT and asked if she had any contacts with the Department of Corrections. She asked 

one of the Assistant Directors at ODOT, and that person did have a contact. Hazen said he reached out to 

that person and asked who the right person would be for him to talk to. They put him in contact with an 

Assistant Director at the Department of Corrections, who was very interested in the program and when 

DMV heard about the program they were also interested. Hazen said this program will be a partnership 

between the Oregon Department of Transportation and the Department of Corrections. Hazen explained 

the benefits of the program and how public transportation will be part of the solution in reducing 

recidivism and at the same time benefit from tapping into potential employees to fill positions on the 

ever-declining driver workforce. Hazen discussed how doing background checks can eliminate an 

applicant before they are interviewed and how he wants to change that approach and spend time meeting 

and interviewing applicants. Hazen said that we will be working with community leaders and other 

programs that will partner with us in developing this program locally. Hazen also said that hiring anyone 

is a risk but there will be a process in place that will screen those going into the program and employers 

will have their own screening process as well. Executive Director Hazen and Human Resource Manager, 

Sue Farmer have already met with Clatsop Community Corrections who are on board with the program. 

They will refer clients that they think would succeed in the program. Hazen said 3 teams were assembled 

that had 2 meetings and a pilot program using transit funds is being set up with Baker Technical Institute 

(BTI) in Baker Oregon. BTI is set up with simulators and have experience in doing heavy equipment 

operation trainings with the Oregon Youth Authority. Also, the Department of Correction is going to 

allow people in this program to be outside the prison for behind the wheel training and possibly to take 

their written test at the DMV. They may also be able to take their driving test with a third-party certifier 

which could allow someone to leave prison with their CDL in hand and take it back to the community 

they were adjudicated from. Because of the agencies working together and the progress that has been 

made, Hazen said that training should begin by the end of January. The first program will probably start at 

the Powder River facility near Baker and then Coffee Creek which is a women’s prison. Commissioner 

Read thanked Executive Director Hazen for his work with this program. Commissioner Read said she has 

a background in advocacy for criminal justice and a place at the table for criminal justice reform and it 

will be very interesting to see how the players plow through the red tape and get going on this. 

Corrections has the best of intentions, but it is a very slow-moving organization. This program could be a 

way for us to be a united voice for legislative issues that will contribute to the benefit of this. 

Commissioner Reed also said recidivism is not about recurring criminal violations, it is on the technical 

things with lack of opportunity to get jobs which includes parole and probation fees, logistics and 

childcare. Commissioner Read added that this is a big story with a lot of moving parts, but I would be so 

excited to see the success of this because it would move us all forward nationwide and maybe it’s the 

transportation industry that is going to crack the code and she would love to see it. Commissioner Nino 

asked who requires blanket bands when doing background checks. Hazen said that they are used for 

safety sensitive positions which include drivers, and the DMV has control of what offenses eliminate 

someone from having or their losing their CDL.  Commissioner Nino said it is good that it goes through 

the DMV because it makes it easier. Commissioner Nino also asked if there was consideration of having 

public relations and a strategy to communicate the program to the public so that there is not any bad 

    7



 

4 

 

publicity. Hazen said we do want to be ahead of that which is why I started with Ethan from the Daily 

Astorian today. Both ODOT and the Department of Corrections have public relations departments, and 

we will soon be pulling them in to help us get the message out on a very positive note. Commissioner 

Withers commented that the public relations will help the formerly incarcerated who may have been out 5 

years or so know that this is an option, that wasn’t an option before now. Commissioner Withers also said 

you cannot blame someone all their life for doing something dumb, but it is easy to do something when 

your young and dumb and have it held against you forever. We are a nation of second chances, what 

happened to that? Commissioner Withers added that sometimes formally incarcerated get stereotyped, so 

I am glad we are trying to get around that. Commissioner Withers said he likes the element of having a 

Clatsop County group filter people to us because they know better who might be qualified. Commissioner 

Withers said that we should impress upon the drivers that we are giving them a second chance and we 

won’t disclose their background to anyone, but we are not going to forget as a manager that they had a 

robbery 10 years ago and that we expect them to respect the fact that we gave them this opportunity. 

Lastly Commissioner Withers said he admires the district’s moving ahead on this and he hopes we can get 

this into place and moving quicker. Commissioner MacDonald said that having 2 adopted sons that have 

done what Commissioner Withers just talked about going joy riding in cars. It does add to the recidivism, 

and it is really hard when they come out and they don’t have any place to go, and it just makes the rest of 

their life that much more uninteresting. Hazen said he is excited and thankful that the Board is supportive 

of this and Oregon’s going to be the pioneer of this. Hazen said he does not take credit for this but gives 

all the credit to Julia back in Iowa. She wrote that blog, but I am running with it.  

 

c. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL CHANGE- Executive Director Hazen presented a letter received by 

Heather Reynolds who has been the district’s legal counsel for several years. Heather will be joining the 

law firm of Haglund Kelley, LLP on January 1st and is wanting to work less so she is requesting we 

transfer primary responsibility of the district’s work to Joshua Stellman who is the Astoria resident 

partner at Haglund Kelley LLP. Heather said she will be available for ongoing issues and advice on 

historical background on any future matter that arises.  Executive Director Hazen reviewed Josh’s resume 

that was included with the letter. Chair Boothe-Schmidt said she would like to meet with Josh and get to 

know him a little bit before approving. Commissioner Read said she would also like to meet with Josh. 

Executive Director Hazen said he will contact Josh and ask if he can attend the January Board Meeting.  

 

11. CORRESPONDENCE- Executive Director Hazen said we have received a letter from NW Community Alliance 

saying due to staffing issues as of January 1st they will no longer be providing our cleaning services. Staff is 

currently looking for another janitorial firm.   

 

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reviewed his report.  

 

13. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Review of Team monthly reports and open discussion with Board.  

 

 

14. OTHER ITEMS- None 

Meeting was adjourned 11:11 AM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 

           

 

Secretary/Treasurer_________________________________        Date______________________________ 

                                                    Diana Nino 
  
 

 

    8



 

5 

 

 

 
                   

    9



    10



    11



    12



Consolidated Balance Sheet

For 11/30/2021

Page:       1SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICTRun: 1/05/2022 at 1:33 PM

This Year Last Year Change
Assets
1010 OVER/UNDER (22.00) 0.00 (22.00)
1020 GENERAL CHECKING LC BANK 182,005.71 126,930.96 55,074.75
1030 LGIP - GENERAL FUND 900,301.25 474,542.74 425,758.51
1040 PAYROLL ACCOUNT LC BANK 73,296.96 73,340.15 (43.19)
1050 MONEY MARKET LC BANK 5,670.62 5,665.00 5.62
1095 CASH RECEIPTS CLEARING SYSTEM 766.73 256,184.87 (255,418.14)
1210 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SYSTEM 13,349.59 18,528.52 (5,178.93)
1299 A/R CONVERSION 0.00 (10,165.48) 10,165.48
1410 PREPAID EXP 0.00 (1,233.83) 1,233.83
1425 PREPAID WORK COMP (23,964.70) (19,532.88) (4,431.82)

Total Assets 1,151,404.16 924,260.05 227,144.11

Liabilities and Net Assets

2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SYSTEM 50,970.60 51,942.33 (971.73)
2050 CREDIT CARD PAYABLE 99,637.08 28,802.51 70,834.57
2059 CREDIT CARD PAYMENT CLEARING (83,115.95) (25,309.97) (57,805.98)
2060 PAYABLE TO NWN (629.08) 1,633.78 (2,262.86)
2080 OVER PAYMENTS/UNAPPLIED CREDITS 255.00 47.50 207.50
2099 A/P CONVERSION (20,436.27) (19,986.27) (450.00)
2100 ACCRUED LABOR SYSTEM 109,387.75 111,204.10 (1,816.35)
2110 SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-EMPLOYEE (1,130.76) (1,130.76) 0.00
2112 PR SUTA (996.21) 0.02 (996.23)
2114 FED W/H TAX PAYABLE (12,010.60) 30.25 (12,040.85)
2115 MEDICARE TAX-EMPLOYEE 1,130.77 1,130.77 0.00
2116 MEDICARE TAX-EMPLOYER 0.01 0.01 0.00
2121 FSA-PT 28.88 28.88 0.00
2122 OREGON TRANSIT ASSESSMENT (813.55) (312.77) (500.78)
2124 BENEFITS MEDICAL SDIS (14,697.36) (9,891.10) (4,806.26)
2130 AFLAC-AT (1,275.39) (1,275.39) 0.00
2131 AFLAC-PT (311.34) (311.34) 0.00
2132 UNITED WAY 175.00 175.00 0.00
2133 GARNISHMENTS 452.80 0.00 452.80
2134 ATU (805.14) (805.14) 0.00
2135 MASA (94.33) (94.33) 0.00
2140 RETIREMENT- 457(b) (1,780.00) (1,780.00) 0.00
2141 RETIREMENT-ER 457 14.99 14.99 0.00
2142 RETIREMENT-ROTH 457 (B) (343.30) (343.30) 0.00

Total Liabilities 123,613.60 133,769.77 (10,156.17)

3000 FUND BALANCE 448,000.05 846,277.82 (398,277.77)
Change in Net Assets 579,790.51 (55,787.54) 635,578.05

Total Net Assets 1,027,790.56 790,490.28 237,300.28

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,151,404.16 924,260.05 227,144.11

    13



    14



    15



    16



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 12/29/2021 @ 9:57 AM Page:  1

Closing Balance from Previous Statement........................................................................................... 11/07/2021 -3,033.95

0 Deposits and Other Additions Totaling...................................................................... 0.00

82 Checks and Other Withdrawls Totaling..................................................................... 10,949.31

Adjustments Totaling.............................................................................................. 3,033.951

Service Charge....................................................................................................... 0.00

Interest Earned....................................................................................................... 0.00

Closing Balance for this Statement..................................................................................................... 12/08/2021 -10,949.31

Difference............................................................................................................... 0.00

Cash Balance from General Ledger.................................................................................................... 12/08/2021 -93,895.28

Open Activity from Bank Register............................................................................. 0.00

Adjustment for Service Charges and Interest............................................................. 0.00

General Ledger Reconciliation to Statement................................................................................................. -93,895.28

0 Voids Totaling........................................................................................................ 0.00

Date Check To Check Description Amount

11/05/2021 0000284 Jones -
Shirt/Hat - Travel Training

29.98TRACTOR SUPPLY

11/07/2021 0000284 Jones -
Dinner/CTAA Conference

31.25DOMINO'S

11/07/2021 0000284 Jones -
Lunch/CTAA Conference

14.13FRESH TO ORDER

11/07/2021 0000284 Jones -
Lodging/CTAA Conference

674.38MARRIOTT

11/07/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Baggage

30.00DELTA AIRLINES

11/07/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

15.70FRESH TO ORDER

11/08/2021 0000284 Jones -
Breakfast/CTAA Conference

11.53MARRIOTT

11/08/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Meal/CTAA

64.26WONG GONZALEZ

11/08/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Dinner - CTAA Conference

134.54TARRANT'S CAFE

11/08/2021 0001209 Farmer - Fingerprinting/Ops 25.00GOVPERMIT

11/08/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

3.92MARRIOTT

11/09/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Gloves

162.00AMAZON

11/09/2021 0000284 Jones -
Breakfast/CTAA Conference

13.73SALT & FORGE

11/09/2021 0000284 Jones -
Dinner/CTAA Conference

39.64MARRIOTT

11/09/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Meal/CTAA

14.76TARRANT'S CAFE

11/09/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

76.29MARRIOTT

11/10/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Metal Photo

69.98COSTCO WHOLESALE

11/10/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Tablet Mount

104.85AMAZON

11/10/2021 0000281 Jones -
Airfare/CTAA Conference

110.99DELTA AIRLINES

11/10/2021 0000284 Jones -
Breakfas/Lunch/CTAA Conference

43.75MARRIOTT

11/10/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

66.18MARRIOTT

11/10/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

7.16MARRIOTT

11/11/2021 0000251 Hazen -
Lodging - CTAA Conference

1,008.62MARRIOTT

11/11/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
CTAA Conference Lodging/J. Geisler

646.38MARRIOTT

11/11/2021 0000284 Jones -
Breakfast/CTAA Conference

17.02SALT & FORGE

    17



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 12/29/2021 @ 9:57 AM Page:      2

11/11/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Meal/CTAA

51.58HILLBILLY REDS BARBECUE

11/11/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Baggage

70.00DELTA AIRLINES

11/11/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Rental Car - CTAA Conference

394.20ENTERPRISE

11/11/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Meals

14.69SALT & FORGE

11/11/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Baggage

30.00DELTA AIRLINES

11/11/2021 0001365 Geisler -
CTAA Conference/Airfare

87.00DELTA AIRLINES

11/12/2021 0000284 Jones -
Parking/CTAA Conference

60.00PDX AIRPORT PARKING

    18



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 12/29/2021 @ 9:57 AM Page:      3

Date Check To Check Description Amount

11/12/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Parking/CTAA

72.00PDX AIRPORT PARKING

11/15/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Mobile Device Software License/Support

432.00SCALEFUSION

11/15/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Domain Renewal

31.16GODADDY

11/15/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Vaccine Mandate Training

119.00FISHER & PHILLIPS LLP

11/15/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Travel Insurance

40.41ALLIANZ TRAVEL INS

11/15/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Airfare/Impact Leadership Program

646.60ALASKA AIRLINES

11/16/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Clevis Pins/Shop

16.60ZORO.COM

11/16/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Driver Seat

200.00SCHETKY NW SALES

11/17/2021 0000269 Parker - Monthly Subscription 10.99ADOBE ACROBAT

11/17/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Lodging/SDAO Training

152.09BEST WESTERN

11/18/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Monthly Fee - Ops

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

11/18/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Monthly Fee - Ops

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

11/18/2021 0000251 Hazen -
Monthly Cloud Fee

0.99APPLE

11/18/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Columbia County Spotlight

35.00WALLIT

11/19/2021 0000284 Jones -
Video Software

14.99STORYBLOCKS

11/21/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Tablet Cases

27.88AMAZON

11/21/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Ad/Yes You Can

33.24FACEBOOK

11/22/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
KN95 Masks

640.00BONA FIDE MASKS

11/22/2021 0000284 Jones -
Video/Travel Training

69.99AMAZON

11/22/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Fingerprinting/FR

25.00GOVPERMIT

11/23/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Flag Mount Brackets

181.35SMARTSIGN.COM

11/23/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Posts/Mounting Hardware/Break-away Bus
Stop Signs

1,093.99TRAFFIC SAFETY STORE

11/24/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Tablet Cases

30.98AMAZON

11/25/2021 0000284 Jones -
Translation Software

47.00CLKBANK

11/25/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Stablizer/Recorder

328.00AMAZON

11/25/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Microphone

69.00B & H PHOTO

11/26/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Air Purifier Filters

479.94ENVIROKLENZ

11/27/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Live Stream

39.00ONESTREAM

11/29/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Heat Shrink/Shop

8.98AMAZON

11/29/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Connector/Shop

8.50AMAZON

11/29/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Connector Kit/Shop

25.98AMAZON

11/29/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
USB Cables/Tablets

51.98AMAZON

11/29/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Lodging -  SDAD Conference

638.10AIRBNB

11/30/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Connector/Shop

14.44AMAZON

12/01/2021 0001209 Farmer -
PT Supervisor Training

222.33INDEED

12/01/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Microphone/Adapter

99.48AMAZON

    19



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 12/29/2021 @ 9:57 AM Page:      4

12/02/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Bus Parts

52.13GILLIG LCC

12/03/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Tablet Cases

22.98AMAZON

12/03/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Chair Weels/Ops Mgr

41.14AMAZON

12/03/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Driver Flashlights

26.40AMAZON

12/03/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Gloves

204.44AMAZON

12/03/2021 0000284 Jones -
Video Projects

77.51AMAZON

12/03/2021 0000285 Hazen - Monthly Fee 140.00ZOOM

12/03/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Final Check/Notice

7.38USPS

12/04/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Batteries/Shop

37.98AMAZON

    20



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 12/29/2021 @ 9:57 AM Page:      5

Date Check To Check Description Amount

12/04/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Tablet

27.36AMAZON

12/06/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Driver Flashlights

132.81AMAZON

12/06/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Monthly Fee

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

12/07/2021 0000284 Jones -
Video Projects

83.71AMAZON

12/08/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Register Effective Interview Training

20.00IPMA HR OREGON

Total Checks:Total Unmarked Checks: 0.00 10,949.31

Reference AmountDate Adjustment Description

11/07/2021 0021282 Payment made from Gen. Ck. for Statement Ending 11/07/2021 3,033.95

11/10/2021 0021281 0.00

12/20/2021 GC Payment made from GEn. Ck. for Statement Ending 12/08/2021 10,494.31

Total Unmarked Adjustments: Total Adjustments: 13,528.2610,494.31

    21



 
 

                           Sunset Empire Transportation District 

NOV FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS & INFORMATION REPORT 
       For the January 2022 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting  

  
   

*Disclaimer: The percentage of the year’s budget cited above is just to be used as a basic benchmark for the fiscal year. Individual 
budget line items will vary based on expenditure time cycles. Items such as Fuel, Wages, & Bldg. Grounds and Maintenance are more 
consistent on a monthly basis and can be used to gauge against the percentage. However, other items such as Insurance and Legal 
Counsel have irregular payment cycles and therefore are not as good to judge against the percentage.  

Page 1 of 1 
 

NOTE on Reviewing Financials: Month 6 = 50% of Fiscal Year Budget*      

                             
 

 

Preliminary General Fund Profit and Loss 

 
The District’s General Fund Total Year to Date (YTD) Income was $3,050,153 ($393,586 more than budget), 

YTD Total Materials & Services was $426,649 ($96,906 under budget). 

 

 

Revenue 

• 4010 Fares:  Revenues for the month were $7,806; $1,444 less than monthly budget and $6,599 over 

YTD budget. 

• Lower Columbia Connector: Revenues for the month were $4,770; $770 more than monthly budget and 

$11,795 more than YTD budget.  

• 4021 Medicaid Fares: Revenues for the month were $4,935; $3,606 over monthly budget and $23,044 

over YTD budget. 

• 4022 Paratransit Fares: Revenues for the month were $1,453; $401 more than monthly budget and $175 

less than YTD budget. 

• 4030 Contracted Services-IGA: Revenues for the month were $0.00; $5,500 under monthly budget and 

$16,839 less than YTD budget. This route isn’t currently operating due to driver shortages. 

• 4110 NW Navigator: Under budget YTD by $1,026.  

• 4205 Property Taxes: $10,671 collected in Dec. Over budget YTD $38,122. 

• 4250 Timber Sales: No Timber Sales collected in Dec. Over budget YTD $18,977. 

• 4420 Parking: All Spaces Rented.  

• 4505 Interest: Dec interest received was $315.21. Under budget YTD $452. 

• 5000 Grants: No Grant Reimbursements Received in Dec.  

Expense  

• 7010 VET Provider Payments: Rides for the month of Nov totaled $137. 

• 8000 Audit: Over budget MTD $19,000. 

• 8031 Online Sub/IT Services: Over Budget $10,162 – 2022 Verizon Tablet Plan 

• 8105 Uninsured Loss: Over budget MTD $2,731 – Bus Struck Parked Vehicle. 

• 8170 Fuel: Over monthly budget $2,290, over YTD budget $9,106 

• END  

** Fuel over budget YTD $9,106. Materials & Services (without capital expense) is under budget for 

MTD by $36,267 and under budget YTD $133,039. 

 

 

 

 

   

    22



    23



    24



Consolidated Balance Sheet

For 12/31/2021

Page:       1SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICTRun: 1/18/2022 at 9:36 AM

This Year Last Year Change
Assets
1010 OVER/UNDER (22.00) 0.00 (22.00)
1020 GENERAL CHECKING LC BANK 33,076.30 21,106.18 11,970.12
1030 LGIP - GENERAL FUND 775,181.21 975,998.79 (200,817.58)
1040 PAYROLL ACCOUNT LC BANK 100,843.26 122,059.45 (21,216.19)
1050 MONEY MARKET LC BANK 5,670.86 5,665.96 4.90
1095 CASH RECEIPTS CLEARING SYSTEM 198.76 691.74 (492.98)
1210 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SYSTEM 10,070.10 48,045.92 (37,975.82)
1251 PASS TRANSIT RECEIVABLES 358.00 0.00 358.00
1299 A/R CONVERSION 0.00 (10,165.48) 10,165.48
1410 PREPAID EXP 0.00 (1,233.83) 1,233.83
1425 PREPAID WORK COMP (29,669.73) (25,416.07) (4,253.66)

Total Assets 895,706.76 1,136,752.66 (241,045.90)

Liabilities and Net Assets

2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SYSTEM 140,379.95 140,040.21 339.74
2050 CREDIT CARD PAYABLE 103,962.77 32,282.25 71,680.52
2059 CREDIT CARD PAYMENT CLEARING (94,065.26) (32,283.40) (61,781.86)
2060 PAYABLE TO NWN (890.43) 2,335.68 (3,226.11)
2080 OVER PAYMENTS/UNAPPLIED CREDITS 255.00 47.50 207.50
2099 A/P CONVERSION (20,436.27) (19,986.27) (450.00)
2100 ACCRUED LABOR SYSTEM 217.38 0.00 217.38
2110 SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-EMPLOYEE (1,130.76) (1,130.76) 0.00
2112 PR SUTA (996.21) 0.02 (996.23)
2114 FED W/H TAX PAYABLE (12,010.60) 30.25 (12,040.85)
2115 MEDICARE TAX-EMPLOYEE 1,130.77 1,130.77 0.00
2116 MEDICARE TAX-EMPLOYER 0.01 0.01 0.00
2121 FSA-PT 28.88 28.88 0.00
2122 OREGON TRANSIT ASSESSMENT (813.55) (312.77) (500.78)
2124 BENEFITS MEDICAL SDIS (14,763.57) (9,891.10) (4,872.47)
2130 AFLAC-AT (1,275.39) (1,275.39) 0.00
2131 AFLAC-PT (311.34) (311.34) 0.00
2132 UNITED WAY 175.00 175.00 0.00
2133 GARNISHMENTS 739.45 573.30 166.15
2134 ATU (805.14) (805.14) 0.00
2135 MASA (94.33) (94.33) 0.00
2140 RETIREMENT- 457(b) (1,780.00) (1,780.00) 0.00
2141 RETIREMENT-ER 457 14.99 14.99 0.00
2142 RETIREMENT-ROTH 457 (B) (343.30) (343.30) 0.00

Total Liabilities 97,188.05 108,445.06 (11,257.01)

3000 FUND BALANCE 448,000.05 846,277.82 (398,277.77)
Change in Net Assets 350,518.66 182,029.78 168,488.88

Total Net Assets 798,518.71 1,028,307.60 (229,788.89)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 895,706.76 1,136,752.66 (241,045.90)

    25



    26



    27



    28



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 1/20/2022 @ 3:08 PM Page:      1

Closing Balance from Previous Statement........................................................................................... 12/08/2021 -10,949.31

0 Deposits and Other Additions Totaling...................................................................... 0.00

54 Checks and Other Withdrawls Totaling..................................................................... 5,218.55

Adjustments Totaling.............................................................................................. 10,949.312

Service Charge....................................................................................................... 0.00

Interest Earned....................................................................................................... 0.00

Closing Balance for this Statement..................................................................................................... 1/07/2022 -5,218.55

Difference............................................................................................................... 0.00

Cash Balance from General Ledger.................................................................................................... 1/07/2022 -98,960.73

Open Activity from Bank Register............................................................................. 153.10

Adjustment for Service Charges and Interest............................................................. 0.00

General Ledger Reconciliation to Statement................................................................................................. -99,113.83

0 Voids Totaling........................................................................................................ 0.00

Date Check To Check Description Amount

12/10/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Membership

250.00TOGO2013

12/10/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
TDM Forum

45.00ASSOCIATION FOR COMMUTER
TRANSPORTATION

12/13/2021 0000215 Lewicki -
Bus Parts - Bus 2101

390.18GILLIG LCC

12/13/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Christmas Party Supplies

74.96FRED MEYER

12/14/2021 0000269 Parker -
Food/Employee Lunch

30.09SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/14/2021 0000284 Jones -
Camera Gear/Training Video

45.99AMAZON

12/14/2021 0000284 Jones -
Camera Mount

22.00AMAZON

12/15/2021 0000251 Lewicki - Meals/Bus Transport 40.09INDY WAY DINER

12/15/2021 0000284 Jones -
Refund - Filter

-77.51AMAZON

12/15/2021 0000284 Jones -
Tablecloth/Education/Outreach

41.90AMAZON

12/15/2021 0000284 Jones -
360 Degree Cameras

816.98AMAZON

12/15/2021 0001209 Farmer -
PT Supervisor Recruitment

502.35INDEED

12/16/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Christmas Lunch

20.00DOLLAR TREE

12/16/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Christmas Lunch

63.29SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/16/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Christmas Lunch

503.82FRED MEYER

12/16/2021 0000269 Parker -
Food/Employee Lunch

91.69SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/16/2021 0000284 Jones -
Food/Employee Christmas Party

73.86SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/16/2021 0000284 Jones -
Computer Connections

49.95HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

12/16/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Lunch/T.O. - M.M.

59.95YELLOW CURRY COZY THAI

12/16/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Christmas Party Supplies

48.88FRED MEYER

12/16/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Christmas Party Supplies

21.75SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/17/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Clocks/FR

46.19AMAZON

12/17/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Christmas Lunch

32.23SMART FOOD SERVICE

12/17/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Christmas Lunch

15.98JOANN'S

12/17/2021 0000269 Parker -
Monthly Fee

10.99ADOBE ACROBAT

    29



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 1/20/2022 @ 3:08 PM Page:      2

12/17/2021 0000284 Jones -
Ice/Employee Christmas Party

8.36SHELL OIL

12/17/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Employee Recognition

17.96FRED MEYER

12/17/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Christmas Party Supplies

23.00PIG N PANCAKE

12/18/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Monthly Fee/Paul

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

12/18/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Monthly Fee/Jennifer

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

12/18/2021 0000285 Hazen -
Monthly iCloud Fee

0.99APPLE

12/19/2021 0000284 Jones -
Yearly Subscription

49.99GOPRO

    30



Reconciliation - CREDIT CARD
SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Run: 1/20/2022 @ 3:08 PM Page:      3

Date Check To Check Description Amount

12/19/2021 0000284 Jones -
SOftware Video

14.99STORYBOARD THAT

12/20/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Dbl. Chrg/Capacitor for Shop Lift - DIsputed

91.90GRAINGER

12/20/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Dashboard Cluster - Bus 1801

499.09eBAY

12/20/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Office Supplies

12.98FRED MEYER

12/20/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Fingerprints/FR

25.00CCSO

12/21/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Capitator Bearing/Shop Lift

23.54GRAINGER

12/21/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Capacitor/Shop Lift

91.90GRAINGER

12/22/2021 0000285 Hazen -
CTAA Conference

485.00CTAA

12/23/2021 0000251 Lewicki -
Rtn Bearing/Shop

-23.54GRAINGER

12/23/2021 0000284 Jones -
Teleprompter

79.00AMAZON

12/23/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Fingerprints/FR

25.00CCSO

12/23/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Employee Badges/FR

53.83NICEBADGE.COM

12/26/2021 0000251 Lewicki - Tow LCC Bus 522.00CARL'S TOWING AND REPAIR

12/27/2021 0001209 Farmer -
Employee Badges;  FR/Ops

44.50FULLIDENTITY.COM

12/27/2021 0001217 Kleczek -
Monthly Subscription

39.00ONESTREAM

12/31/2021 0000269 Parker -
PT Super Ad

76.99FACEBOOK

1/02/2022 0000251 Lewicki -
Shop Bearing

9.95AMAZON

1/03/2022 0000285 Hazen -
Monthly Fee

140.00ZOOM

1/03/2022 0001209 Farmer -
Certified Letter

14.96USPS

1/03/2022 0001209 Farmer -
Fingerprints/FR

25.00CCSO

1/05/2022 0001217 Kleczek -
Travel PPE/Covid

64.97COSTCO WHOLESALE

1/06/2022 0001217 Kleczek -
Monthly Fee

14.99ADOBE ACROBAT

1/07/2022 0000285 Hazen - Refund -638.10AIRBNB

1/07/2022 0001209 Farmer -
Employee Badges/FR

21.61NICEBADGE.COM

Total Checks:Total Unmarked Checks: -153.10 5,065.45

Reference AmountDate Adjustment Description

11/10/2021 0021281 0.00

12/08/2021 GC21380 Correction of Payment made from Gen. Ck. For Statement ending 12/08/2021 455.00

12/20/2021 GC Payment made from GEn. Ck. for Statement Ending 12/08/2021 10,494.31

1/17/2022 GC21435 Payment made from Gen. Ck. for Statement ending 01/07/2022 5,218.55

Total Unmarked Adjustments: Total Adjustments: 16,167.865,218.55

    31



Date: January 4, 2022 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.a District Legal Counsel Update 

 

Last month I shared a letter from our legal counsel, Heather Reynolds.  In this letter she 

discussed that she has joined the law firm of Haglund Kelley, LLP.  This firm is located in 

Portland, and they have also had an office in Astoria for 15 years.  She shared that she would 

like to transfer primary responsibility for our work to Josh Stellmon, the Astoria resident 

partner for Haglund Kelley. 

 

I have attached her letter along with the firm overview of Haglund Kelley along with their 

pricing, and Josh Stellmon’s resume.  Josh plans on being at the meeting so you have the 

opportunity to ask questions and learn more about him. 

 

Staff is recommending that a motion be made to approved the attached Agreement and 

authorize the Board Chairperson to sign it. 

 

    32



    33



    34



    35



    36



 

Page 1 - Personal/Professional Services Agreement 

   Sunset Empire Transportation District 
     900 Marine Drive 
     Astoria, Oregon 
 
 
              
 

PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 This AGREEMENT, dated January 27, 2022, is by and between Sunset Empire 
Transportation District (“District”) and Joshua Stellmon of Haglund Kelley, LLP, (“Counsel”).  
Whereas District has need of the services which Counsel has agreed to provide;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of this Agreement, Counsel agrees to perform between 
January   27, 2022 and January   1, 2023 the following specific personal and/or professional services:   

 
Serve as the attorney for Sunset Empire Transportation District, including but not limited to 
handling all legal work assigned to counsel by the Board of Directors of the District or 
designated District staff.   
 

Payment Terms:  
 

Invoice monthly, in a format acceptable to District, for work based on counsel’s hourly 
rate of $250.  Also, counsel will be reimbursed for fees, copying charges, and mailing 
charges; and reasonable travel expenses incurred with District’s prior written consent.   

 
 
1. COMPLETE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties 
and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, and all other communication between the parties 
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
2. WRITTEN NOTICE.  Any notice of termination or other communication having a material effect 
on this Agreement shall be served by U.S. Mail on the signatories listed. 
 
3. GOVERNING LAW/VENUE.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Oregon.  Any action commenced in connection with this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of 
Clatsop County.  The prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs, including 
an appeal.  All rights and remedies of District shall be cumulative and may be exercised successively 
or concurrently.  The foregoing is without limitation to or waiver of any other rights or remedies of 
District according to law. 
 
4. COMPLIANCE.  Counsel shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules 
and regulations.  All provisions of ORS 279B.220-235 (Public Contracts and Purchasing) are 
incorporated herein to the extent applicable to personal/professional service agreements. Specifically, 
Counsel shall: 
 

a. Promptly pay, as due, all persons supplying labor and material for the prosecution of 
the work provided of in such contract.  If Counsel fails to pay any such claim, District 
may pay the claim and charge the payment against the funds due Counsel, pursuant to 
ORS 279B.220; 

    37



 

Page 2 - Personal/Professional Services Agreement 

b. Pay any required contributions due the Industrial Accident Fund incurred in the 
performance of the contract; 

c. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against District, on account of any 
labor or material furnished by Counsel; 

d. Pay the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 
316.167; 

e. Not employ any person more than 10 hours a day, or 40 hours a week, unless 
permitted under ORS 279B.235, and any employee working over 40 hours per week 
shall be paid overtime as provided in ORS 279B.235. 

f. Pay promptly, as due, any payment for medical surgical or hospital care furnished to 
employees of Counsel, pursuant to ORS 279B.230. 

g. If Counsel is a subject employer, Counsel will comply with ORS 656.017. 
 

5. JUDICIAL RULINGS.  If a court to be void or unenforceable, as applied to either party or to 
any circumstances shall adjudge any provision of this Agreement, the same shall in no way affect any 
other provision of this Agreement or the validity of enforceability of the Agreement. 
 
6. INDEPENDENT COUNSEL.  Counsel, in carrying out the services to be provided under this 
Agreement, is acting as an "independent counsel" and is not an employee of District, and as such 
accepts full responsibility for taxes or other obligations associated with payment for services under 
this Agreement.  As an “independent counsel", Counsel will not receive any benefits normally accruing 
to District employees unless required by applicable law.  Furthermore, Counsel is free to contract with 
other parties, on other matters, for the duration of this Agreement. 
 
7. INDEMNIFICATION.  Counsel shall save harmless, indemnify, and defend District for any and 
all claims, damages, losses and expenses including but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees 
arising out of or resulting from Counsel's performance of or failure to perform the obligations of this 
Agreement to the extent same are caused by the negligence or misconduct of Counsel or its 
employees or agents. 
 
8. INSURANCE. Counsel shall purchase and maintain at Counsel's expense, Professional 
Liability insurance, in the amount required by the Oregon State Bar Association.   

 

9. WORKER'S COMPENSATION.  Counsel shall comply with ORS 656.017 for all employees 
who work in the State of Oregon.  If Counsel hires employees, he or she shall provide District with 
certification of Worker's Compensation Insurance, with employer's liability in the minimum of 
$100,000. 
 
10. NONDISCRIMINATION.  No person shall be subjected to discrimination in receipt of the 
benefits of any services or activities made possible by or resulting from this Agreement on the 
grounds of sex, race, color, creed, marital status, age or national origin.  Any violation of this provision 
shall be considered a material violation of this Agreement and shall be grounds for cancellation, 
termination or suspension in whole or in part by District. 
 
11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement may be terminated under the following 
conditions: 
 

a. By written mutual agreement of both parties.  Termination under this provision may be 
immediate. 

b.   Upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice by either Party to the other of intent to 

    38



 

Page 3 - Personal/Professional Services Agreement 

terminate. 
c.   Immediately on breach of the contract. 
 

12. SUBCONTRACTING/NONASSIGNMENT.  No portion of this Agreement may be contracted to 
or assigned to any other individual, firm, or entity without the express and prior approval of District. 
 
13. SURVIVAL.  The terms, conditions, representations and all warranties contained in this 
Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
14. STANDARD OF SERVICES AND WARRANTY.  Counsel agrees to perform its services with 
that standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional individual in the 
performance of similar services.  It is understood that Counsel must perform the services based in 
part on information furnished by District and that Counsel shall be entitled to rely on such information.  
However, Counsel is given notice that District will be relying on the accuracy, competence and 
completeness of Counsel's services in utilizing the results of such services.   Counsel warrants that 
the recommendations, guidance and performance of any person assigned under this Agreement shall 
be in accordance with professional standards and the requirements of this Agreement. 
 
16. DISTRICT PRIORITIES.  Counsel shall comply promptly with any requests by District relating 
to the emphasis or relative emphasis to be placed on various aspects of the work or to such other 
matters pertaining to said work. 
 
17. OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents, or other material submitted to 
District by Counsel shall become the sole and exclusive property of District.  All material prepared by 
Counsel under this Agreement may be subject to Oregon's Public Records Laws. 

 
18. TAX COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION. Counsel hereby certifies, under penalty of perjury, as 
provided in ORS 305.385(6), that to the best of Counsel's knowledge, Counsel is not in violation of 
any of the tax laws described in ORS 305.380(4). 
 
 
 
FOR DISTRICT:     FOR COUNSEL: 
 
              
Signature    Date  Signature    Date 
 
Board Chairperson                                           
Title        
 
        
 
 

    39



January 2022, Operations 

Paul Lewicki 

Staffing continues to be a challenge.  We have recently lost a driver trainee, a newer driver, and 
our lot attendant. Each loss makes it a little more difficult to continue to deliver excellent service 
to our riders.  

Mackenzie Lindquist, one of our Driver Supervisors, separated from the District for other 
opportunities.  Matt Jensen, a fixed route driver, applied for and successfully competed for the 
vacated position.  Matt is now our third Driver Supervisor, and works day shift, Monday, Tuesday, 
and Wednesday, and works evening shift on Thursday and Friday.  Matt is enthusiastic about his 
new responsibilities, and I feel that he has the attitude and positive nature to become an effective 
supervisor.  Congratulations Matt! 

We also welcome Larry Worthy as the successful candidate to fill the vacancy left by Jennifer.  
Larry is now our new Paratransit Supervisor.  Welcome Larry! 

Our Volvo motor coach used for trips to Portland continues to undergo repairs and remains out of 
service.  Our second Gillig 35-footer, new to us last year, was in an accident and is now in 
Portland being repaired.  Body work is complete, and we are waiting for Gillespie Graphics to 
replace the damage pieces of the wrap.  The bus is expected to be back in service in about three 
weeks. 

Still no estimated delivery date on the six new buses we ordered over one year ago.  Two more 
buses ordered at the end of last year to support our Lower Columbia Connector route have been 
ordered from the manufacturer.  We have no idea of the expected delivery date, and don’t expect 
to have that information anytime soon.  Widespread disruptions in the supply chain, distribution, 
and manufacturing, due to the negative impact of COVID-19, is to blame. 

We implemented our fixed route tablet project this month, and our drivers are enjoying working 
with the new program.  The tablets, using an app from Swiftly, display the on-time status of the 
bus to the driver in real time, showing whether they are ahead of schedule, on time or running late.  
This has made it easier for the drivers in that they do not have to look at their paper schedules to 
determine their status.  A simple glance at the tablet and they are good to go.  The positive impact 
on the District’s reliability remains to be seen, but after a month or so of data is collected, I expect 
to see significant improvements in on time performance, and significant reduction in running 
ahead of schedule. 

The City of Astoria has completed painting the curb and installing our new bus stop signs in the 
pull out in front of El Tapia Restaurant at Marine Drive and Columbia Avenue.  They will be 
replacing the bus stop sign in front of the armory on Exchange and 16th, while we develop a 
schedule to replace some 20 signs throughout the county over the next 45 days. 

Precision Alignment was on site for two days in January performing the required annual safety 
inspections on our fleet.  All inspections were completed satisfactorily, and we are set to go for 
another year.  Kudos to our shop for staying on top of issues and performing regular maintenance 
in a timely and professional manner. 

    40



 

Transportation Options 

December 2021 & January 2022 Report to Board 

Kathy Kleczek 

 

It is so important to dress appropriately and wear light colors or reflective gear so you can be Safe and be Seen! 

If you know somebody that cannot afford to get proper lights for their bicycle please contact me so we can get 

them a light.  One fatality on our roads where lack of lights was a factor is one too many.   

 

During our weather events I focused my efforts on getting the word out about road conditions and travel alerts.  

If you have subscribed to the NW Transportation Options Facebook page, make sure to follow and allow alerts 

so you don’t miss important Region-wide information.  Alerts include road conditions, construction, and transit 

alerts.   

 

I was accepted into the Association for Commuter Transportation ImpACT Leadership Program.  It is taking 

place this week in Orlando, Florida.  Now while you feel bad for me having to be in Florida during the winter 

months, you should be aware temperatures are predicted to only have highs in the 60’s this week.  I look 

forward to bringing back ideas and make connections for future projects to benefit our Region.   

 

Recently I have noted comments on social media by people looking for rides that are associated with school 

districts.  I am looking into establishing school specific carpool groups.  This is referred to as “school-pools”.  A 

school-pool is exclusively available for those associated with the particular school group.  Due to safety 

concerns, there are a few safety elements included that are not present in a general carpool.  If you know of 

someone at a school that would be interested or may be a good champion for this project, send them my way!   

 

Transportation Talk is a great time and place to have your questions about transportation answered.  If you 

caught our show lately, please like our page, like the shows, and share!   If you don’t click LIKE we do not 

know you were there.  Jason and I work hard to come up with show ideas that are relevant to a wide spectrum of 

people.  We make shows that are for people who live here or visit here.  Students, employers, employees, all 

kinds of folks.  We have a great library of videos on Facebook.  Sharing and talking about the show and videos 

helps us get the word out about all the great things happening here at SETD and the other transportation districts 

in the region. Help us grow our audience and reach, join us LIVE on Facebook and YouTube on Fridays at 

11AM, and share to your friends. 

 

Speaking of keeping your eyes open, did I mention already?  Make sure to stay extra alert out there, it is dark 

for more hours of the day.  Make sure you are watching for children; School Routes are Everywhere-Drive Like 

it!  And if you are walking or rolling, stay safe by being seen!  I have some yard signs for you to put in your 

front yard that say “school routes are everywhere- DRIVE LIKE IT” Let me know if I can bring one to you.   

 

Social Media-Get There Oregon 

• Posted ODOT road condition/construction updates 

• Live Facebook talks with Jason to educate about the importance of Transportation Options  

• Plan series of shows to improve outreach and successful motivation from SOV for car free travel for vacation 

Conference/Education 

• Attended trainings by ODOT, SRTS Tourism groups network, learn and encourage implementation of TO 

• Attended City and County meetings to stay informed and involved in planning to keeping TO at the table 

• Webinars on how to help with long term positive travel behavior changes-transit-carpool-biking 

• Leading Transportation Options Group for NCTMN- encourage stewardship of the Region and its resources 

• Accepted to National ImpACT Leadership program by the Association for Commuter Transportation 

• Started Social Marketing classes runs from Sept-March 

Safe Routes To School 

• Starting School-pool conversations with regional schools 

    41

https://www.facebook.com/NWtransportationOptions
https://www.facebook.com/NWtransportationOptions/videos
https://fb.watch/v/18_5zRGfs/
https://www.facebook.com/NWtransportationOptions/videos


 
Marketing, Outreach and Education 
January 2022 Board Report  
Mary Parker 
 
OUTREACH and ANNOUNCEMENTS-  

 Prepared Rosa Parks Day press release, posters, and informational handouts for display on busses, in shelters, 
media and other public display.  

 Prepared Christmas and New Year’s route closure public announcements and distributed them to media 
and posted flyers on busses and shelters.   

 Prepared December Board Minutes 
 Prepped and distributed Public Announcements for January Board Meeting 
 Prepared and distributed job descriptions and job announcements for Lot Attendant 
 Attended wonderful and delicious SETD holiday lunch and awards presentation. So fun! 
 Prepared and distributed request for volunteers for SETD Budget Committee  

 

    42



Human Resources 
January 2022 Board Report 
Sue Farmer, Human Resources Manager 
 
MEETINGS/TRAININGS ATTENDED: 

• SDAO Effective Safety Committees Series 

• SDAO Winter Weather Preparedness 

• Lower Columbia Human Resources BOLI Update Webinar 

• Diversity, Equity, Inclusion  – Barron Liebman LLC 

• Effective Interview Process – IPMA 

• LEDS 2020 Fingerprint Collection Training - OSP 

• Continue to remain up to date on the local, state, and national COVID-19 information and how it 
is impacting the workplace. 
 

ACTIONS: 
➢ Participated in the Wishing Tree program.  SETD supplied gifts and food for 2 families which 

included 3 adults and 3 children.  Transportation Support Specialists Danielle McGregor-Clark 
and Cheryl Stoffelsen were a huge help making ornaments, collecting gifts, and wrapping 
presents.  Deputy Operations Officer Jennifer Geisler and Para-Transit Driver Bronn Lichnovsky 
delivered the Christmas presents and food to the families on December 21, 2021. 

➢ Prepared 2 OFLA packets for employees. 
➢ Conducted 3 interviews for Para-Transit Supervisor.  Hired Larry Worthy. 
➢ Prepared the minutes for the Safety Committee and 4th Quarter inspections for the meeting on 

Tuesday, January 25, 2022.  
➢ Prepared the monthly ODOT Covid-19 report. 
➢ Prepared templates for evaluations due in January and sent them to the appropriate 

supervisor/manager. Processed annual pay increases as required. 
➢ Prepared job posting for the Lot Attendant position. 
➢ Conducted interview for Lot Attendant. 
➢ Sent monthly notices to drivers regarding upcoming renewals of CDL’s and Medical Certifications. 
➢ Processed the monthly Union Report with a list of all employees eligible for Union membership. 

 
NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATIONS:  

• Provided New Employee Orientation for Para-Transit Supervisor Larry Worthy.  As fleet 
manager at Spokane Produce Larry scheduled 64 drivers and 51 routes covering 5 states.  
Larry worked with the sales department and warehouse to ensure all routes left on time 
with the correct products on board.   He also worked for V.L Transportation as a fuel truck 
driver which included the fueling of buses for school districts in Stevens County, 
Washington, and owned and operated his own security company S.P.D. Security 
Corporation which provided an onsite guard or personal body guard protection service. 
 

• Provided New Employee Orientation for Fixed Route Bus Driver Trainee Tyler Long.   
Tyler worked as a server at The Roadhouse in Chinook, WA. 

 
HIGHLIGHTS 

❖ Matt Jensen promoted to Fixed Route Supervisor effective December 21, 2021. 
 

• WORKPLACE DEMOGRAPHICS: 
 

Male 26 

Female 15 

  

Hispanic/Latino 2 

White 37 

Two or More Races 2 

Updated:  1-19-2022 

    43


	1. JANUARY 2022 Board Agenda
	2. Acronym Listing 
	5. December 9 2021 Draft Board Minutes final
	6.a SETD Exceptions Report Nov 2021
	6.b Statement of Activity
	6.c Balance Sheet
	6.d AR Aging
	6.e AP Aging
	6.f Check Listing
	6.g Credit Card Recon
	7.a SETD Exceptions Report Dec 2021
	7.b Statement of Activity
	7.c Bal Sheet
	7.d AR Aging
	7.e AP Aging
	7.f Check Listing
	7.g Credit Card Recon
	8.a.1 Legal cover
	8.a.2 Reynolds Letter
	8.a.3 2022 Stellmon Contract
	12.a Operations Report - January 2022
	12.b TO December 2021- January 2022 Board report
	12.c January 2022 Outreach and Education
	12.d HR January 2022 Board Report



